



# Table of Contents

BenchVue Lab	3
Introduction	3
Key features and benefits	3
BenchVue Lab at a glance	4
Lab System Setup	5
Requirements for Demo	5
Getting Started	6
Install BenchVue Lab Application	6
BenchVue Lab Software Licensing	6
Lab Configuration	6
Configure Bench Layout	6
Configure Instruments	8
Homepage Dashboard	10
Add/Edit New Widget	10
Lab Administrator	11
Check Instrument Status	11
Configure Measurement State/Settings of All Instruments at Once Seamlessly	12
Asset Tracking	15
Asset Tracking in a Glance	15
Add New Asset Manually	16
Import Asset from Lab Layout	16
Managing Instrument Calibration	17
Asset Checking Out	
Configure Reminder Settings	
BenchVue Lab – Client Configuration	20

## BenchVue Lab Introduction

Keysight's BenchVue software platform comes with an intuitive interface and removes the need to program, making it simple to control, analyze measurements and quickly build automated tests with Keysight instruments. The BenchVue Lab application builds upon this foundation and is designed as a lab management solution, providing centralized instrument lab configuration, data logging and automation for educators managing teaching labs.

This solution consists of the Manager and Client apps – the Manager app acts as the main software application installed on the lab administrator's PC for centralized control and management, while the Client app runs on test bench PCs and connects all the instruments at individual test benches.

#### Key features and benefits

- Streamline and simplify lab management, saving lab administrators and educators time and freeing them to focus on teaching. BenchVue Lab provides overview connection statuses of all instruments via a customizable home screen with widget control, and allows administrators to configure the measurement settings of all instruments at once, all from a single admin PC. With this single software platform, administrators also can easily track asset inventories; changes to the asset list such as when instruments are sent for calibration or removed from the lab on loan are automatically updated in software's lab configuration status.
- Enhance the learning experience of students by utilizing BenchVue Lab as an education lab teaching software platform. Full desktop and BenchVue application sharing allows for easy remote monitoring and student assistance in the test lab. With the BenchVue Lab client app installed at each test bench computer, students can easily control instruments, log data and screen shots, and automatically join lab sessions.
- Easily integrate the software into the existing lab setup. BenchVue Lab supports over five hundred Keysight test and measurement instruments, and will also connect to non-Keysight test instruments that are compliant with the VISA connection protocol. Together with an intuitive GUI and the ability to import CSV files, BenchVue Lab enables educators to quickly set up and configure large labs.
- **Save on investment.** Educators can take advantage of the BenchVue Education Lab and Control Collection bundle, which consists of:
  - One BenchVue Lab manager app license, which acts as the main software application installed on the administrator's PC for centralized control and management
  - Fifty BenchVue Lab client app licenses, which runs on test bench PCs and connects all the instruments at individual test benches
  - Fifty BenchVue EDU network licenses, which allows access to the Pro versions of thirteen control, automation and analysis apps on the BenchVue software platform
  - And unlimited student licenses

#### BenchVue Lab at a glance

BenchVue Lab – Manager

Keysight BenchVue	nt He	ome > Bend Export All Bench La	ch 🗸 1yout: <b>28 88 2</b>	3		🔛 BenchVi	ue Test Flow	Instruments
1 BenchVue Lab - Manager	n 🏠 La	b Administrator	Asset Tracking			(	) 12 - X	1 BenchVue Lab - Manager
Lab Configuration	무중	6 Benches	37 Total Instrumen	6 No. of Layout	6 Instrument/benc	25 Config Instrume	6 Non-config	2 BendiVue Lab - Client
Lab Administrator	ţ.							+ Add
Asset Tracking	20 C	27 Total Asset	O Cal. Due (30 da	5 Cal. Overdue	1 Total C/O	1 C/O due 10 days	O CIO Overdue	141:153:14:242 SRI Serial Control COM Port
							80	9 = 7

BenchVue Lab – Client

BenchVue Lab - Client BenchVue Lab - Client Server Connection  Server Connection  Serve	<ul> <li>O − ♂</li> <li>Instruments</li> </ul>	🔮 🖡 BenchVue Test Flow	3	Bench 🗸	Home >	t BenchVue	C Keysight
	BenchtVas Lab- Nanager BenchtVas Lab- Clean + Add Event Supply 13.1.10.14.242 Event Supply 13.1.10.14.242 Event Supply 13.1.10.14.242 Event Supply 13.1.10.14.242 Event Supply 13.1.10.14.242	P     E       Server Connection     ●       10	SV e: 1 V/I	Import CSV Bench Name:		Leb - Client	BenchVue

- 1. BenchVue platform navigation directory. Click the pull-down menu to navigate the platform:
  - a. Bench The BenchVue applications that are currently running.
  - b. Applications The list of all BenchVue applications, its details and licensing information.
  - c. Data Manager Saved measurement data logs.
  - d. Library Database for the latest instrument manuals, software, FAQs, videos, etc.
- 2. Bench application main window.
- 3. Bench layout options to split to multi-window display of all the currently running bench applications.

- 4. The BenchVue Lab application navigation tabs which comprise four main tabs Home, Lab Configuration, Lab Administrator and Asset Tracking.
- 5. Application Panel that list all BenchVue applications currently running.
- 6. Instrument panel that list all connected instruments.
- 7. Manage the list of instruments.
- 8. Application settings.
- 9. Notification panel.
- 10. BenchVue Lab Client application server connection panel.

#### Lab System Setup

A typical customer lab setup includes an admin PC installed with BenchVue Lab – Manager software and a number of test benches (BenchVue Lab can support up to a maximum of 100 benches). Each test bench may be equipped with up to 6 instruments. The instruments on the test benches can be connected directly to the admin PC in a LAN system via a multiple-port network switch or gateway. In an alternative lab setup, each test bench may also include a Bench PC, which may be a fixed desktop or a student's mobile PC. Each of the Bench PC is installed with the BenchVue – Client software that are readily connected to the BenchVue Lab – Manager which acts as the server.



#### **Requirements for Demo**

#### PC with system requirements

- Operating System Microsoft Windows 10: 32-bit & 64-bit (Professional, Enterprise, Education, Home versions); Microsoft Windows 8: 32-bit & 64-bit (Professional, Enterprise, Core); Microsoft Windows 7: SP1 and later 32-bit & 64bit (Professional, Enterprise, Ultimate, Home Basic, Home Premium)
- CPU 1 GHz or faster (>2 GHz is recommended for optimum performance)
- RAM –2 GB (>3 GB is recommended for optimum performance)
- Interface support LAN/USB/GPIB/RS-232

- BenchVue Platform Software. Free trial can be downloaded from the following URL: https://www.keysight.com/my/en/software/application-sw/benchvue-software/benchvue-complete-control-collection.trial.html?checked=y
- Keysight basic instruments
  - o DMM
  - Function Generator
  - Two GPIB cables

## Getting Started Install BenchVue Lab Application

First, install the BenchVue platfrom software. Free trial can be downloaded from the following URL: https://www.keysight.com/my/en/software/application-sw/benchvue-software/benchvue-complete-control-collection.trial.html?checked=y.

Launch the platform application Windows Start>All Apps>Keysight BenchVue. On the BenchVue window, click the 'BenchVue platform navigation directory' to expand the dropdown menu and select 'Applications'. The main window will be populated with all applications including those that are currently not installed. Select 'Lab Manager' application and click 'Install' to start installing the application.

#### BenchVue Lab Software Licensing

After the installation has completed, you may choose to purchase the license options or start a free 30-day trial. After the trial period expires, you will be required to purchase a software license to continue to use the application. Keysight's flexible licensing options allow you to select the license type and license terms that best fit your software needs. For more information on BenchVue software free trials and licensing options, go to www.keysight.com/find/benchvue\_apps.

## Lab Configuration Configure Bench Layout

The Lab Configuration Tab allows you to configure your lab layout, number of benches, type and number of instruments, name of the benches etc. according to your actual lab layout. There are two options to configure your lab layout - either manually or by importing from a CSV file (refer to user manual for guidelines to import lab layout from a CSV file). Multiple lab layouts can be saved and easily interchanged to allow flexibility for different classes sharing a lab.

To configure the bench layout manually,

- 1. Click 'Manual Configuration'
- 2. Select the total number of rows and columns of test benches. For e.g. select 3 X 3 (the maximum limit is 10 X 10 benches).
- 3. The benches can be deleted to match your actual lab layout. For e.g. delete a row of benches in the middle to represent the aisle between the rows of benches by hovering your mouse cursor over

the selected bench and click the 'X' icon at the top-right. Alternatively, you may remove the bench by right-clicking the selected bench>Delete Bench.

- 4. To add instrument onto the test benches, move your mouse cursor over one of the benches and click the '+' icon that appears.
- 5. Select the type of instrument, for e.g. select function generator. Function generator will be added automatically on all the benches. There are four pre-configured basic instrument types, namely oscilloscope, function generator, power supply and digital multimeter (DMM). Other types of instrument can be added as 'Other' category.
- 6. Additional instruments may be added (up to six instruments per bench) by right-clicking on any of the benches>Add Instrument. For e.g. add DMM to all the benches. You may edit the bench's instrument or rename the bench by right-clicking the selected bench and select the options from the pop-up menu.
- 7. The lab layout and any changes can be saved into a file by clicking the 'Save Lab Layout' icon.
- 8. The saved lab layout can be opened by clicking the 'Open Lab Layout' and select the saved file.
- 9. All recently used lab layout will also be listed on the 'Lab Configuration' tab homepage.
- 10. To return to the homepage, click the gear icon>close lab layout (please note that any unsaved changes will be discarded).





#### **Configure Instruments**

The instrument added to the test bench initially appear as greyed-out icon indicating configuration has not been completed. To configure the function generator and DMM on bench 1:

- 1. Connect the instruments to the PC via LAN/GPIB/USB/RS-232
- 2. Click on the instrument icon.
- 3. On the pop-up menu, select the instrument's manufacturer.
- 4. There are two ways to configure the instrument either input the instrument's model number and serial number or its VISA address.



The instrument's model no., serial no. and VISA address can be readily acquired from the Keysight Connection Expert application. The Keysight Connection Expert application should have been installed automatically together with the BenchVue Software installer. To launch Keysight Connection Expert, click Start Menu>All Applications>Keysight Connection Expert. BenchVue Lab currently supports over 500 instruments from both Keysight and non-Keysight manufacturers that comply with IEEE-488 protocols. Connect the instruments to the PC via GPIB cables.

- 1. The instrument is automatically detected and appear on the list of instruments grouped according to the respective connection interfaces.
- 2. Click on the instrument. Copy the model no. and serial no. or VISA address and input to the BenchVue Lab Manager.

Keysight Connection Expert 2018	�?_□	×
Instruments PXI/AXIe Chassis		
My Instruments +Add 2 📰 🕇	Details for Agilent Technologies 33622A	
∧ 😵 GPIB-USB (GPIB0)	😂 🕼 \star 📑 🤷 🖆	
✓ GPIB-USB (GPIB1)	Check Edit Remove Interactive IO Monitor Command BenchVue Web UI Soft Front Status IO Expert Panel	
33622A, Agilent Technologies         GPIB1::10::INSTR         34465A, Keysight Technologies         GPIB1::23::INSTR         ALAN (TCPIPO)         COM (ASRL9)         COM (ASRL11)	2 Manufacturer: Agllent Technologies Model: 33622A Serial Number: MY53801652 Firmware Version: A.01.11-2.25-03-64-02 Web Information: Product Page Connection Strings	
▲ USB (USB0)	VISA Address Aliases SICL Address CGPEB1::10::INSTRgpib1,10  Installed IVI Drivers Update  SNo installed drivers>	

## Homepage Dashboard

BenchVue Lab 'Home' displays a dashboard that provides a one-page overview on the lab information, instrument statuses, pending actions required and other types of reminder notification. The dashboard is highly customizable with various widgets which can be added and configured to automatically change color codes to indicate certain status according to the user's customization. These will readily provide an overview information to the lab manager and/or lecturer at one glance.

#### Add/Edit New Widget

To add a widget to the homepage dashboard:

- 1. Click the 'Home' tab.
- 2. Click the 'Application Setting' icon.
- 3. Select 'Add Widget'.
- 4. In the 'Category' pull-down menu, select either 'Lab Configuration or 'Asset Tracking' category. 'Lab Configuration' category include widgets of lab information such as total number of benches, instruments, configured or non-configured instruments etc. Whereas 'Asset Tracking' category include widgets of assets registered and its status such as the total number of assets, the number of asset currently with calibration schedule overdue and the number of assets currently being checked-out etc. You may select the type of widget in the 'Query' pull-down menu and then input the title that would appear on the dashboard and select the font size.
- 5. Optionally you may customize the 'Limit Check' to specify a certain condition, for example, for calibration overdue widget, you may specify the limit check greater than or equal to 1 instrument, change background color code to 'red' indicating there is 1 or more instrument currently needs to be calibrated. There are several options in the pull-down menu that you may customize the widgets according to your preference or application.
- 6. Click 'OK' to complete adding the widget.

🔘 Keysight BenchVue 🛛 🕇	Home > Ben	ch 🔫				01	<b>투 다 0 -</b> 리 X
🚺 Start All 🛑 Stop All 🔛 🍃	Export All Bench	Layout: 🔐 🚺 🗖			🛃 Bench	Vue Test Flow	Instruments
1 BenchVue Lab - Manager						0 ⊡ -7 ×	1
Home 👯 Lab Configuration 🕻	Lab Administrator	Asset Tracking					BenchVue Lab -
Lab Configuration	6	37	6	6	25	6	2
TW	Banchas	Total Instrumen	No of I avout	Instrument/hanc	Config Instrume	Non-config	BenchVue Lab - Client
	<b>DURINING</b>	TOLDE THOM OTHER	no, or cayour	not anoto bono	Coning materime	Non-coming	-L Add
Lab Administrator							
۲ů							
							Power Supply 141.183.14.242
Asset Tracking	27	0	5	1	1	Ο	<u></u>
	21	U	5			0	SRL
	Total Asset	Cal. Due (30 da	Cal. Overdue	Total C/O	C/O due 10 days	C/O Overdue	Serial Control COM Port
New Widget Settings			0 X				
Category Asset Tracking	•						
Query Number of asset c	libration overdue		•				
Title		Font Size	e 12 🔻				
5 Limit Check Greater/Less than	•						
If number >= 🔻	1						
Change background	to 🗾 🔻					3 Add Widge	at
		С ок	Cancel			About	
						2 2 0	

To edit/delete/clone the widget, hover your cursor over the selected widget, click the 'more option' icon at the top-right of the widget and select the desired options – to edit/remove/add new/clone widget.

## Lab Administrator Check Instrument Status

Lab administrator allows the lecturer or/and lab manager to monitor the current instrument connection status. This feature provides the lecturer/lab manager a quick overview of the current instrument connection status and easily identify which instrument and on which bench that is not correctly connected.

To check the instrument status,

- 1. Click on the 'Lab Administrator' tab and
- 2. Click on the 'Check Instrument Status' icon at the top left.
- 3. The connection status of all configured instruments will be updated and displayed in the following color codes:
  - Green connected and active
  - Red disconnected or connection error
  - Grey-out Instrument that are not configured yet



#### Configure Measurement State/Settings of All Instruments at Once Seamlessly

Lab administrator also allows the lecturer or/and lab manager to configure the measurement state/settings of all the instruments on the benches in bulk easily. This feature enables centralize control for lecturer/lab manager to quickly reset or send a pre-set measurement state/setting to all the instruments at once for a specific measurement session.

To send a pre-set measurement state/setting,

- 1. Click the 'Send Instrument Configuration' icon
- On the pop-up menu, click the arrow icon for drop-down menu of the desired instrument type. Function Generator is selected for this example. Save the attached function generator demo state file below:



3. Click 'Add to recent configuration list' to browse and select the saved function generator state file.

- 4. Click 'Send configuration file to ALL instruments.' The measurement state/settings for all the instruments connected to BenchVue Lab Manager will be automatically configured according to the state file for Channel 1:
  - Amplitude: 1 mVpp
  - Offset: 5 V
  - Frequency: 1 kHz
  - Phase: 0 deg
- 5. You may easily remove all selected state files by clicking 'Clear All Selected Configuration File.'
- 6. You may also reset all the settings of the instruments to default by clicking 'Send Default Configuration (Reset).' The default configuration:
  - Amplitude: 100 mVpp
  - Offset: 0 V
  - Frequency: 1 kHz
  - Phase: 0 deg



To create/save a new preset measurement state file,

- 1. Go to the 'Application' tab on the BenchVue platform.
- 2. Launch the BenchVue Application for the desired instrument type. For this example, a state file of function generator is created by launching the 'BenchVue Function Generator' app. You may install and activate the free 30-day trial for the Function Generator App for access.

- 3. Once the Function Generator App is launched, click 'Connect' to the instrument. The instrument must be connected and powered on.
- 4. Configure the desired measurement setting and parameters, for example Channel 1:
  - Amplitude: 1 mVpp
  - Offset: 5 V
  - Frequency: 1 kHz
  - Phase: 0 deg
  - Other parameters remain as default

Note: If the instrument is currently acquiring measurement, the state file cannot be saved. The measurement acquisition must be stopped first.

- 5. Click the 'Save' icon.
- 6. You may rename the state filename and change the directory of the saved file. The instrument state file is saved in a proprietary format \*.state file extension and can now be used to configure all the instruments at once via BenchVue Lab Manager.



O Keysight BenchVue	I Instruments
2 Function Generator // 33622A.// GPIB 10	
Channel 1 Output (20) Channel 2 Output (20)	Bendivue Lab - Manager 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 3 3 3 3
	+ Add
Amplitude:         I m/yp         Frequency:         I bitz         Amplitude:         I 00 m/yp         Frequency:         I bitz           Offset:          4.9995 V         Phase:         0 dig         Offset:         0 V         Phase:         0 dig	Power Supply 141.183.14.242
Mode: Modulation Survey Burst & All Off     Mode: Modulation Survey Burst & All Off	SRL
Output         Sync Output         Output         Sync Output           Mode:         Normal         Load:         S0 0         Mode:         Normal         Load:         S0 0           Polarty:         Normal         Ittight 7         Polarty:         Normal         Ittight 7           Voltage Limits         Voltage Limits         Voltage Limits         Voltage Limits         Voltage Limits	Serial Control COM Port
Conclumit:     -> V     High Limit:     > V     Exercise     > V       Conclumit:     -> V     High Limit:     > V     Figh Limit:     > V	
A Hide Folders Sive Cancel 5.	ort 📃

## Asset Tracking Asset Tracking in a Glance

BenchVue Lab Manager Asset Tracking provides intuitive management tool for lecturer and/or lab manager to easily keep track of a long list of assets in the lab including but not limited to instruments, equipment and accessories. The Asset Tracking is designed to manage instrument loaning, instrument calibration schedule tracking with e-mail reminder/alert system and asset reports viewing as well as export. Items may be added to the asset tracking list manually, import from lab layout and/or import from CSV file.

	1 BenchV	Manager Add new or ome	edit assets onfiguration 🐔 Lab	Administrator	Asset Tracki	ng		Asset Keyword to filter out	d Search Box - specific list
Asset Full List		$\oplus$	Asset List	Custo	mization Asset Infor	mation Fields		۹	
Assets Pending		Model Number	Manufacturer	Department	Asset Location	Asset Owner	Calibration Due Date	Calibration Interval	Instrument Option
Calibration List		N6705B	Keysight Technologies	RnD	Jersey City	John	<disabled></disabled>	<disabled></disabled>	Usb/Gpib/Lan
Assets Available for	:===	EDU-X 3200	Keysight Technologies	RnD	Beijing	Peter	2/3/2010		Usb/Gpib
Checking Out	ι=Π	DSO-X 2004A	Keysight Technologies	RnD	Bayan Lepas	Mei	12/9/2016	11	Usb/Gpib/Lan
		N6705C	Keysight Technologies		Bayan Lepas	Alice	12/8/2016	12	Usb/Lan
Configure Reminder	15 <u>2</u>	34970A	Keysight Technologies	в	Bangalore	Nick	12/9/2016	11	Usb
Setting		34465A	Keysight Technologies	RnD		Mark	7/7/2016		Usb/Gpib/Lan
Asset Check Out	œ.	M12					<disabled></disabled>	<disabled></disabled>	
List		M15					<disabled></disabled>	<disabled></disabled>	
	2	M16					<disabled></disabled>	<disabled></disabled>	
		M1					<disabled></disabled>	<disabled></disabled>	
								¢	• 📭 Export
									Export Asset List Report

#### Add New Asset Manually

To add new asset manually,

- 1. Go to the 'Asset Tracking' tab
- 2. Click the 'Add New Asset' icon
- 3. Input the asset information. The asset's 'Model Number', 'Serial Number' and 'Asset Number' are mandatory fields that need to be filled. Other fields are optional and can be provided to allow easy filtering, searching or categorization of the assets in the future.
- 4. If applicable, calibration information can also be provided, typically for test and measurement instruments that require intermittent calibration. The system will notify the lecturer and/or lab manager in the notification icon, homepage dashboard and email notification. Please refer below on how to configure and customize the notification system.
- 5. Click 'OK' to save the entry. The asset will now be on the 'Asset Full List.'
- 6. To make changes, click 'Edit' to edit the selected entry. If any modification to the entry is made, the date for last update is automatically recorded.

1 BenchV	ue Lab -	Manager		1										0 2	ъх
<u>ش</u>	ne 🗜	La'figuration	Lab Admini	strator	Asset Tracking										
	Ð						Asset	List					۹		
	No.	Model Number	Serial Number	Asset Number	Instrument Type	Asset Owner	Asset Location	Department	Manufacturer	Calibration Due Date	Calibratio	on Interval	Last Updated	Instrument Option	
		N6705B	MY00138714	120	DC Power Analyzer	John	Jersey City		Keysight Technologies	<disabled></disabled>	<disable< th=""><th>ed&gt;</th><th>9/26/2018</th><th>Usb/Gpib/Lan</th><th></th></disable<>	ed>	9/26/2018	Usb/Gpib/Lan	
:		EDU-X 3200	MY00237643	130		Peter	Beijing		Keysight Technologies	2/3/2010			9/26/2018	Usb/Gpib	
8		DSO-X 2004A	MY00111234	290		Mei	Bayan Lepas		Keysight Technologies	12/9/2016			9/26/2018	Usb/Gpib/Lan	
127		N6705C	MY00111235	100	DC Power Analyzer	Alice	Bayan Lepas		Keysight Technologies	12/8/2016			9/26/2018	Usb/Lan	
::2		34970A	MY02378127	510	010	A17.45	Recolum			10/0016			9/26/2018	Usb	
3	6	34465A	MY02374569	430	Add New Asset						<u></u>	×	9/26/2018	Usb/Gpib/Lan	
CQ.					Asset Information —										
₽					Model Number *			Serial Number	•		_				
					Asset Number *			Instrument Typ	pe						
					Asset Owner			Asset Location	8						
					Manufacturer			Department							
					Model Description			Firmware Vers	ion						
					Instrument Option			Service Provid	er						
					Coordinator			Comments			_				
					Calibration Inform	nation									
				4	Calibration Due Date					- manth(a)					
					Calibration Due Date	9/26/2018		Calibration Int	ervai	· month(s)					
					Site							_			
									Add and New	ок	Cancel				
										5					
														<b>* 1</b> 0	Et Event
															E export

#### Import Asset from Lab Layout

You may quickly import all the instruments from the lab layout previously configured into the Asset Tracking list. To import asset from lab layout,

- 1. Click on the 'Application Settings' icon at bottom-right
- 2. Select 'Import Asset from Lab Layout'
- 3. Select the desired lab layout
- 4. Click 'OK' to add all the configured instruments from the selected lab layout. Note that only instruments that had been previously configured with Model No. and Serial No. will be added.

Instruments that were configured with VISA address without the mandatory Model No. and Serial No. information cannot be added to the Asset Tracking list and an error message will appear. The Model No., Serial No. and Asset No. must be unique for each entry, otherwise an error message indicating duplicity will appear.

C Key	/sight l	BenchVue	A Home ► Export	> Bench	. 22 11 22 1							BenchVue Test	C.
1 Beach	hua Lab - N	-										0.73	-7 ¥
		I tab Carfanatian	Part and a dama		and Territory							<b>v</b> •	• •
	me T		1 10 Lab Admi	nistrator CIQ: A	A								
	$\oplus$						Delet	e Asset Record					
17	No.	Model Number	Serial Number	Asset Number	Instrument Type	Asset Owner	Asset Location	Manufacturer	Calibration Due Date	Calibration Interval	Delete Asset		
		N6705B	MY00138714		DC Power Analyzer	John	Jersey City	Keysight Technolog	ies <disabled></disabled>	<disabled></disabled>	Delete		
						Choose Lab La	ayout			0 X	Delete		
:==		DSO-X 2004A	MY00111234	290		3					Delete		
		N6705C	MY00111235		DC Power Analyzer	Layout Name	Fotal Bench	6 Instrument per Ben	o/21/2018		Delete		
E.		34970A	MY02378127		DAQ	Aaron Demo	Impc 12		9/24/2018		Delete		
		34465A	MY02374569		DMM	Aaron Demo	Impc 12		9/7/2018		Delete		
						5X5 layout Demo Guide	25 56	6 4	9/21/2018		Delete		
						Demo 3X2			9/7/2018		Delete		
											Delete		
											Delete		
											Delete		
											Delete		
		M15									Delete		
											Delete		
											Delete		
									ок	Cancel	Delete		
			S102					6	<disabled></disabled>	<disabled></disabled>	Delete		
									Impo	t Asset fr	om Lab Lay	/out	
									Impo	t Accot fr	om CEV Eil	2	
									Impo	t Asset In		e	
									Delet	e Asset Re	cord		
									About				
	23	М3	S11	83					About				*
												🗘 🚱 🛛	Export

#### Managing Instrument Calibration

BenchVue Lab Manager include management tools to keep track of instrument calibration. Calibration information can be added to each asset by:

- 1. Selecting the desired asset and click 'Edit Asset' icon
- 2. Click the 'Calibration Information' checkbox
- Input the 'Calibration Due Date' directly MM/DD/YYYY or via the calendar app. This is the first calibration due date. A notification message will appear when the date is approaching and/or on the actual date. The notification settings are customizable with an optional reminder via e-mail (please refer to the 'Configure Reminder Setting' below)
- 4. Select the number of months in 'Calibration Interval' to determine the recurrent calibration schedule.
- 5. Input the calibration 'Site' for the location of which calibration center.
- 6. Click 'Save' to save the changes for current entry.

To view the list of instruments currently with calibration due date over lapsed, click 'Pending Calibration Asset' icon. The list will of asset will appear in red indicating calibration overdue. The 'Remaining Days' information in negative value indicates the number of days has lapsed since the calibration due date.

After calibration has been completed, click 'Edit Asset' icon on the selected instrument to update the 'Calibration Due Date.' The system will automatically track the next recurrent calibration due date.

1 Benc	chVu	e La	ab - Mar	nager												
â	Hom	ne	무장	Lab Configuration	ţ.	Lab Admin	istrator	As	set Tracking							
		Ð	1 ע											Asset l	ist	
<b>1</b> 11		No	<b>D</b> .	Model Number	Serial	Number	Asset	Number	Instrument	Туре	Ass	set Owner	Asset Location	D	epartm	nent
		1		N6705B	MY001	38714	120		DC Power A	nalyzer	Johr	۱	Jersey City	Rn	D	
≣Ę	j	2	Edit A	sset and Calibrat	ion Info	ormation									0	×
:==		4	Asset	Information ——												
:72	2	5							Last Updated	i		10/8/2018				
Ð	2	6 7	Model	Number *	EDU->	x 3200			Serial Numb	er *		MY00237643				
~~	-	8	Asset	Number *	130				Instrument 1	Гуре						
₽		9	Asset	Owner	Peter				Asset Locatio	on	ľ	Beijing				
		10	Manuf	acturer	Keysiq	ght Technol	ogies		Department		ſ	RnD				
		12	Model	Description	Oscillo	oscope			Firmware Ve	rsion	ſ	1				
		15	Instru	ment Option	Usb/G	Spib			Service Prov	ider	ľ	Company A				
		14	Coordi	inator	Chan				Comments		Ĩ	50 MHz and 2	2 Analog Chann	els		
	2	e														
		15	V Ca	libration Info	tion —						-					
		14	Calibra	ation Due Date	2/3/2	2010			Calibration I	nterval	4	1 .	month(s)			
		20	Site			.010					-					
		21			China											
		22							Edit	Previous	T	Edit Next	Save		ancel	
		23														
		24		M12	S22		85									

#### Asset Checking Out

Asset checking out feature is useful for tracking the physical location of the instruments where it is often sent out for loan or calibration. To check out an item,

- 1. Click the 'Asset Available for Check Out' icon. The list shows items that are currently available in the lab.
- 2. Select the desired item for checking out and click the 'Check Out' icon
- 3. Fill in the 'Check-Out Information' including check-out date, target return date, contact name, number and e-mail etc. A notification message will appear when the target return date is approaching and/or on the actual date. The notification settings are customizable with an optional reminder via e-mail (please refer to the 'Configure Reminder Setting' below). You can also easily select the reason for check-out in a drop-down menu for either 'Send for Calibration' or 'Send for Loan.' For other reason, you may select 'Other' and input the 'Comments' section for specification.
- 4. Click 'Check Out' to check out the item. The item will now be removed from the 'Asset Available for Check Out' list.

	$\oplus$	Z)				Asset	Availat	ole for Checking out				
	ber	Instrum	ient Type	Asset Owner	As	set Location	Model	Description		Calibration Due Date	2	eck out
_												Check ou
8				Mei	Bay	an Lepas	Oscillos	cope: 70 MHz and 4 Analo	og Channels	12/9/2016		Check ou
		DC Pow	er Analyzer	Alice	Bay	an Lepas	DC Pow	er Supply		12/8/2016		Check ou
-		DAQ		Nick	Ban	galore	Data Ad	quisition		12/9/2016		Check ou
Ş.		DMM		Mark						7/7/2016		Check ou
										<disabled></disabled>		Check ou
			Asset Chee	ck-out Registr	ation						0 x	1eck ou
			Asset Info	rmation ——								heck ou
			Model Num	ber	EDU-X 3200			Serial Number	erial Number MY00237643			
		_	Asset Numt	ber	130			Instrument Type			heck ou	
		_	Asset Owne		Peter			Asset Location			heck ou	
		_	Calibration	Due Date	2/3/20	10		Model Description				neck ou
		3										heck ou
			Check-out	Information -								heck ou
			Check-out o	date	10/1/2	018		Target return date	10/4/2	018		heck ou
			Contact No	ine				Reason	Send fo	r Calibration	Days	neck ou
			Contact Em	ail				- reason	Joind To			heck ou
			Comments	i								neck ou
												heck ou

To view all the items currently being checked-out and to edit the 'Check-Out Information'

- 1. Click the 'Asset Check-Out List' icon.
- 2. Click the 'Edit' icon of the desired item.
- 3. You may edit the 'Check-Out Information' and click 'Save' to save the changes.
- 4. To check in the item when it is returned, click the 'Check In' icon. The item will now be moved back to the 'Asset Available for Check Out' list.

1 BenchV	ue Lab	- Manager											0	2	5 ×
₿н₀	me	📲 🛱 Lab C	onfiguration	ία L	ab Administrator	Asset Tr	acking								
	Ð					Asset	t Check-	out List							
11	heck-	out date	Target return da	e	Check-out Duration	Contact	Name	Contact Email	l.	Contact No.	Comment		2"		
														Edit	
≣D		Edit Chec	ked-out Asset									0	×		
192		Asset Info	ormation ——			 									
3		Model Nur	nber	N670		s	erial Numb	er		138714					
1 4		Asset Nun	nber	120		Ir	nstrument	Туре	DC Po	wer Analyzer					
æ		Asset Owr	her	John		A	sset Locati	on	Jersey						
		Calibration	n Due Date	<disi< th=""><th>abled&gt;</th><th>м</th><th>lodel Descr</th><th>iption</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></disi<>	abled>	м	lodel Descr	iption							
	3	Check-ou	t Information										-		
		Check-out	date	10/1	/2018		Targe	t return date		10/10/2018					
		Contact N	ame	Shau	n		Chec	k-out Duration		9	Days				
		Contact N	o.	0468	99012		Reas	on		Send for Calibr	ation 🔻				
		Contact Er	mail	Shau	n@Keysight.com		_					r			
		Comments	5	lech	Center										
									Sav	• <b>4</b> Che	ck in	Cance	I		
	4														<b>-</b> •
												1	¢ 6	<sup>◎</sup> <b>F</b>	Export

Find us at www.keysight.com

## **Configure Reminder Settings**

The BenchVue Lab Manager provides automatic reminder notification for instrument calibration due date and asset check-out end date. The reminder notification settings are customizable according to the user preferences. To configure reminder settings:

- 1. Click on the 'Configure Reminder Settings' icon
- 2. Check the 'Perform reminder scan' checkbox to enable reminder scan. You may customize how often (i.e. daily, weekly or monthly) and at what time the system performs reminder scan on the lab assets for notification for calibration and/or asset check-out reminder.
- 3. Check the 'Calibration Reminder' checkbox to enable calibration reminder. You may customize the number of days prior to expiration date and/or on the expiration date. The type of notification (i.e. Message, Warning or Alert) that appear on the notification panel can also be customized to distinguish the calibration reminder from other types of notifications.
- 4. You may also choose to send e-mail notification to the e-mail address recipients configured. First, you need to setup the e-mail sender by clicking the 'E-mail Setup' button. In the E-mail settings' pop-up menu, select the 'Custom' radio button and input the username, password, server and port information. Please refer to the respective E-mail provider for Fowarding and POP/IMAP setup guide. In this example shown, an Gmail account is used for the setup. Please visit the following URL for Gmail setup and troubleshhoot guide: https://support.google.com/mail/answer/7104828?hl=en&visit\_id=636739814384206357-

3541955164&rd=1

Additional, you may need to enable less secure apps access:

https://support.google.com/accounts/answer/6010255?p=lsa\_blocked&hl=en&visit\_id=636739814 384206357-3541955164&rd=1

- 5. Check the 'Check-Out Reminder' checkbox to enable check-out reminder. You may customize the number of days prior to check-out date and/or on the check-out end date. The type of notification (i.e. Message, Warning or Alert) that appear on the notification panel can also be customized to distinguish the check-out reminder from other types of notifications.
- 6. You also configure E-mail notification for check-out reminder similarly by following Step 4.

### BenchVue Lab – Client Configuration

BenchVue Lab – Client app is designed for test bench PCs and connects all the instruments at individual test benches. The BenchVue Lab – Client readily links with the BenchVue Lab – Manager installed on the main Admin PC via LAN connection.

To launch BenchVue Lab – Client on the test bench PC, go to Application tab>select BenchVue Lab – Client> Launch. If the app is yet to be installed, you will need to install the app first by clicking 'Install'. After the installation is completed, you will now be able to launch the app. Once the client app is launched,

- 1. Configure the PC type by clicking the 'Application Setting' icon
- 2. Click 'Set Bench PC Type'.
- Select either Fixed PC for a dedicated PC that is permanently used for the test bench or Non-Fixed PC for a non-permanent mobile PC, i.e. student's mobile PC. Click 'Select' to confirm selection.
- 4. Click the 'Server Connection' panel to connect to the BenchVue Lab Manager installed on the Admin PC.

- 5. Input either the Host name ID or the IPv4 address of the Admin PC and click 'Connect.' You may choose to select the 'Connect Automatically' checkbox for future connections. Please note that the test bench PC and the Admin PC must be connected in the same network via LAN cables.
- Select the desired 'Test Bench Name' as designated in the lab layout by the BenchVue Lab Manager.
- 7. You may configure the connected instruments on the test bench. Please refer to the guide above on how to configure instruments.



# Learn more at: www.keysight.com

For more information on Keysight Technologies' products, applications or services, please contact your local Keysight office. The complete list is available at: www.keysight.com/find/contactus

